
Request for Proposal 19-ITN-003-BM 
Hurricane Michael Community Outreach Program 

Technical Questions and Answers   
 

 The Department’s responses to timely submitted questions are provided below: 

 

Respondent 

Question 

Number* 

RFP Page Number, 

Section Number, 

Subsection Reference* 

Question* 

 

 

 

Answers 

1  Is there an incumbent on 
the account? 
 

No. 

2  Have you worked with a 

PR/marketing/creative 

agency in the past? 

Yes. 

3  Are you currently working 
with a 
PR/marketing/creative 
agency? 

No. 

4 Pg. 15 and 16, B.39 

Attachment H – 

Reference Questionnaire 

 The ITN states, “The 
reference questionnaire 
provided as Attachment H 
must be completed by an 
individual representing 
each of the clients listed in 
Attachment A, Reference 
Form. These individuals 
may not be current or 
former officials or staff of 
DEO.” 
 
Question: Most large 
grantees, including DEO, 
are not willing to provide 
written references since 
the questionnaires place 
an undue burden on the 
agencies.  Given that DEO 
will contact the 
references directly, would 
DEO be willing to modify 
this requirement to allow 
the provision of the 
reference’s contact 
information and remove 

Yes. DEO will accept both emailed 
References as well as mailed references 
for this solicitation. Please see Addendum 
1.    
 



the requirement for the 
questionnaire? 

5 

Pg. 15 and 16, B.39 

Attachment H – 

Reference Questionnaire 

The ITN states, “DEO will 
not accept late references 
or references submitted 
by any means other than 
that which is described 
above, and each reference 
questionnaire submitted 
must be completed as 
required.” 
 
Question: Given the quick 
turn of this effort as well 
as the burden placed on 
our clients to complete, 
seal, and mail the 
Reference Questionnaire 
to the Prime with enough 
time for the Prime to 
submit them, would DEO 
be willing to do either of 
the following: 

• Allow the clients 
to submit the 
Reference 
Questionnaire 
directly to DEO 
via email to ease 
some of the 
burden to our 
clients? 

• Extend the ITN 
due date until 
Tuesday 
September 17th to 
ensure our clients 
are able to 
provide us with 
their completed, 
sealed 
questionnaires in 
time for us to 
include them in 
our response?  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Please refer to the answer to 
question 4. 
 
 
 

• The ITN due date will not be 
extended. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

Pg. 41, Attachment A, 

Reference Form 

In the instructions listed 
on Attachment A, the ITN 
states, “The Respondent 
must list three (3) 
separate and verifiable 
clients, other than DEO, 
for which work similar to 
that specified in this 
solicitation has been 
performed for a period of 
at least five (5) continuous 
year(s).”  
 
If the requirement is for 
five (5) continuous years, 
this provision would 
appear to be anti-
competitive.  
 
Question: Given that the 
outreach and intake 
components of CDBG-DR 
projects only last a very 
short time, typically 90-
180 days, or one year at 
most, we request the 
requirement for “five (5) 
continuous years” be 
changed to “within the 
last five (5) years” for all 
past performance 
references.  
 
Question: Has the DEO 
made any determination 
on how this provision will 
restrict the respondent 
pool that will meet the 
requirement? 

The Department will change the language 
to say within the last 5 years. See 
Addendum 1. 

7 B.32 Conflict of Interest  If a company or 
organization is a 
subcontractor to a Prime 
contractor on this effort, 
would that subcontractor 
be prohibited from 
Priming future work for 
Hurricane Michael for 
DEO?  

Yes. Please see section C.3. 



8  Can the grant submittal be 
extended one week? 
 

No. 

9 Page 13,  Section B.37.1: 

 

For the project approach 
section, please confirm if 
the DEO staffing hours 
need to be provided only 
if an alternative approach 
is proposed. If DEO 
staffing hours are 
required, can existing 
benchmark hours be 
provided from previous 
DEO-led CDBG-DR 
initiatives? 
 

The estimated staffing hours should be 
provided on the original approach or 
alternative approach proposed to allow 
the program to estimate FTE needed for 
implementation. 

10 Page 13,  Section B.37.1 For the project schedule 
and timeline section, 
please provide a 
definition of “resource 
loaded and leveled 
project schedule.” For 
example, are resources to 
be defined as time, costs 
and DEO staff hours?  
 

Please refer to the answer to question 9 

11 Page 14, Section B.37.1: 

 

For intake and 
registration operations, 
please confirm the 
current technology 
platform and 
system/record. 

For prior CDBG-DR relief, DEO relied upon 
a web-based system. 

12 Page 26, Section C.3 

 
• For the Next Phase 

after the Scope of 
Work section: 

o Will there be an 
outreach component 
to this work?  

o Will there be an 
opportunity to 
generate an awareness 
for the relief phase. For 
example, earned 
media coverage, 
speaker bureaus, etc. ? 

 

Yes to both. 



13 Page 27, Section C.5 

 
• Are there mandated 

deadlines in place for 
deliverables 1-7? For 
example, is there a 
certain time period by 
which the project plan 
and project schedule 
must be provided?  

• Are these specific do-
not-exceed budget 
parameters in place for 
each deliverable?  

 

For proposed deliverable 1 there is an 
estimated timeframe. Proposed 
deliverables 2-7 will be determined by the 
approved project plan and when funds 
become available Additionally, all final 
deliverables will be agreed upon during 
the contracting phase. 

14 Pg. 15 and 16, B.39 
Attachment H – 

Reference Questionnaire 
 

The ITN states, “The 
reference questionnaire 
provided as Attachment H 
must be completed by an 
individual representing 
each of the clients listed 
in Attachment A, 
Reference Form. These 
individuals may not be 
current or former officials 
or staff of DEO.” 
  

Question: Most large 
grantees, including 
DEO, are not willing to 
provide written 
references since the 
questionnaires place 
an undue burden on 
the agencies.  Given 
that DEO will contact 
the references directly, 
would DEO be willing 
to modify this 
requirement to allow 
the provision of the 
reference’s contact 
information and 
remove the 
requirement for the 
questionnaire? 

No. Please refer to the answer to question 
4. 

15 Page 42, Attachment B, 
Deliverables 5, 6, and 7 

 
Page 27-28, C.5; 

The requirements of the 
“non-recurring” 
deliverables referenced 
provide expected 

Yes. The cost should reflect the cost for 
monitoring and reporting. These costs 
should reflect the anticipated reduction in 



Deliverables 5, 6, and 7 performance matrixes for 
the Call Center, Intake 
Center and Overall 
Performance. Ensuring 
that vendors meet the 
established goals is an 
ongoing process with 
associated cost for 
monitoring and reporting. 
Is it the expectation that 
the price provided under 
these deliverables include 
these associated costs for 
monitoring and 
reporting? If so, what 
duration of time should 
be included (i.e. 2-year 
base, 2-year base plus the 
2, 1 year extensions, 
etc.)? Please clarify if our 
understanding of the 
pricing requirements 
under these deliverables 
is incorrect. 
 

workload over the contract period 
including any extensions. 

16 Page 7, B.19 Description 
of Work Being Procured. 

 
Page 31, C.6.5 Intake 

Centers, #1 
 

Page 42, Attachment B, 
Deliverables 3 and 4 

 
 

Within the referenced 
section it states that “the 
contractor shall assist 
with the launch and 
administration of the first 
phase of Florida’s CDBG-
DR program”  
 
Under the referenced 
deliverables, vendors are 
required to provide 
pricing for each of the 2 
base years along with 
each of the 2 extension 
periods within 
Attachment B. Although it 
is clear what cost will be 
associated within year 1 
in meeting the 
established goal count, it 
is not clear what the 
expectations are for 
pricing the 2nd year of the 

Please refer to the answer to question 15. 



base period along with 
the 2 extension periods. 
Please specify what are 
the program/staffing 
requirements once the 
established goal count of 
applicant registrations are 
completed within these 
deliverables (i.e. will a 
skeletal staff be 
maintained to support 
the program, etc. ?). 
 

17 Page 8, B.21 Contract 
Period 

The contract period is for 
24 months; but the 
outreach period is only 
180 days. It is not unusual 
for grantees to extend 
the outreach period, 
sometimes even up to a 
year. However, even with 
an extension of outreach 
and intake for registration 
that lasts one year, this 
will leave a full 12 months 
of contract period with no 
work to be performed. 
Does DEO expect the 
contractor to procure 
space at the multiple 
locations for the full 24-
month period, even if no 
work will be performed in 
the last 12-months of the 
contract? 

No.  Additionally, the ITN states that the 
contractor “may establish” a physical 
presence, but does not require one. 

18 Page 25, C.3 General 
Description 

The ITN indicates the 
marketing should 
maximize awareness for 
potential CDBG-DR 
assistance available 
beyond a general 
description of “housing.” 
Has DEO defined what 
assistance will be 
available; i.e. which 
configuration of housing 
assistance programs will 
be implemented (single 

DEO’s action plan is not finalized, 
however, contractor’s responses should 
assume that housing, economic 
development and infrastructure programs 
will be a part of the state action plan. Past 
programs have included the following 
housing recovery programs: 
http://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/2015-
community-development/community-
revitalization/dr/stateofflactionplanfordr.pdf?sfvrsn=2 

http://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/2015-community-development/community-revitalization/dr/stateofflactionplanfordr.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/2015-community-development/community-revitalization/dr/stateofflactionplanfordr.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://floridajobs.org/docs/default-source/2015-community-development/community-revitalization/dr/stateofflactionplanfordr.pdf?sfvrsn=2


family, small rental, 
interim mortgage 
assistance, temporary 
relocation, multifamily 
rehab, new construction, 
etc…? Because the ITN 
also requests mock 
samples of materials that 
could be used for 
publicizing Rebuild Florida 
project opportunities for 
the public, the 
breakdown of DEO’s 
planned activities is 
critical to fulfilling this 
requirement in the ITN. 
Can DEO please provide 
more detail on the variety 
of programs for which 
outreach and intake 
activities must be 
provided under this ITN? 

19 Page 26, C.3 General 
Description 

Given that the ITN 
describes the 
intake/registration 
contractor’s scope of 
services to include the 
establishment of physical 
locations for constituent 
interaction and DEO 
intends to award 
subsequent contracts for 
“application processing, 
housing construction, 
economic development 
and infrastructure” 
activities, can DEO clarify 
whether the intake and 
outreach scope covers 
only registration of 
potential applicants or 
whether this ITN is 
describing services for 
intake of registrations 
and applications?  

The ITN states that the contractor “may 
establish” a physical presence, but does 
not require one. The procurement covers 
only the registration requirements.   The 
vendor procured through this ITN will not 
be responsible for intake of applications 
or application processing. 



20 Page 26, C.3 General 
Description 

Given that the ITN 
describes the 
intake/registration 
contractor’s scope of 
services to include the 
establishment of physical 
locations for constituent 
interaction and DEO 
intends to award 
subsequent contracts for 
“application processing, 
housing construction, 
economic development 
and infrastructure” 
activities and “the 
contractor awarded this 
work is expected to 
perform and manage a 
knowledge transfer 
project to the vendor 
awarded subsequent 
contracts,” can DEO 
clarify the handoff point 
between the various 
vendors? For example, 
what is the terminal 
action of the vendor 
procured under this ITN 
versus the initial action of 
the vendor for application 
processing? 

The ITN states that the contractor “may 
establish” a physical presence, but does 
not require one. The procurement covers 
only the registration requirements.   The 
vendor procured through this ITN will not 
be responsible for application processing.  
The terminal action between the various 
vendors has not been determined at this 
time. 

21 Page 26, C.3 General 
Description 

Given that the ITN 
describes the 
intake/registration 
contractor’s scope of 
services to include the 
establishment of physical 
locations for constituent 
interaction and DEO 
intends to award 
subsequent contracts for 
“application processing, 
housing construction, 
economic development 
and infrastructure” 
activities and “the 
contractor awarded this 
work is expected to 

The ITN states that the contractor “may 
establish” a physical presence, but does 
not require one.  No long-term case 
management services (e.g. application 
processing, liaising between registrants 
and recovery service providers, etc.) are 
being procured in this ITN. 



perform and manage a 
knowledge transfer 
project to the vendor 
awarded subsequent 
contracts”, can DEO 
clarify whether this ITN 
includes an expectation 
of long term case 
management services 
beyond the 180 day 
planned registration 
period? If case 
management services are 
expected as part of this 
ITN, can DEO clarify the 
role of case management 
versus registration 
intake? Additionally, if 
case management 
services are expected, can 
DEO clarify the scope of 
case management 
services? 

22 Page 26, C.3 General 
Description 

Given that the ITN 
describes the 
intake/registration 
contractor’s scope of 
services to include the 
establishment of physical 
locations for constituent 
interaction and DEO 
intends to award 
subsequent contracts for 
“application processing, 
housing construction, …” 
activities and “the 
contractor awarded this 
work is expected to 
perform and manage a 
knowledge transfer 
project to the vendor 
awarded subsequent 
contracts”, can DEO 
clarify the role of case 
management versus 
registration intake? 
Additionally, if case 
management services are 

Please refer to the answer to question 21.  



expected, can DEO clarify 
the scope of case 
management services? 

23 Page 30, C.6.4 Intake and 
Registration Operations 

The scope at number 5 
indicates “Contractor will 
ensure compliance with 
the Stafford Act.” Since 
registration, by definition 
is simply a sign-up for 
interested parties who 
would later seek to apply 
and no actual eligibility 
determination or other 
documentation is 
typically collected at a 
registration phase in 
CDBG-DR projects, what 
exactly is DEO seeking to 
have the contractor do in 
reference to “compliance 
with the Stafford Act”? 
Wouldn’t any Stafford Act 
NFIP compliance and 
duplication of benefit 
issues be identified as 
part of the agency’s 
system of record 
requirement guiding the 
registration process or, 
more appropriately, at 
application—which 
appears to be beyond of 
the scope of this ITN?  

The ITN contemplates that all services 
being procured will be done so in a 
manner that is consistent with all federal 
requirements. It is not anticipated that 
the respondent awarded the contract 
pursuant to this ITN will be responsible for 
duplication of benefits verification. 

24 Page 30, C.6.4 Intake and 
Registration Operations 

The scope at number 9 
indicates “All call center 
operations should be 
conducted in the state of 
Florida, and within 
Hurricane Michael 
impacted communities, if 
possible.” 2 CFR 200.319 
procurement 
requirements specifically 
prohibit geographic 
preference requirements 
as these are undue limits 
on fair and open 

The Department is not mandating that the 
Contractor’s call center operations be 
located in Florida or awarding points 
based on this criteria during the scoring 
phase.  The Department will comply with 
all applicable federal procurement 
requirements including those identified in 
2 CFR 200.317.  The Department’s desire 
to have the call center located in the state 
of Florida, if possible, is predicated on the 
goal of ensuring that monitoring and 
oversight of procured services can be 
performed in the most cost efficient 



competition. Even though 
DEO has left the 
requirement open with 
an “if possible” phrase on 
the back of the 
requirement, this 
statement in the ITN will 
provide reviewers with an 
opportunity to rank some 
respondents higher than 
others based on 
geographic preference. 
Please consider removing 
the requirement for 
geographic location of 
service of the call center 
as it is anti-competitive 
and in violation of federal 
procurement standards. 

manner to conserve state and federal 
dollars. 

25 Page 30, C.6.4 Intake and 
Registration Operations 

Describes call center 
services. Does DEO intend 
for the call center to 
continue operational 
support for the program 
beyond the registration 
period, for example, 
during application and 
construction services that 
will be conducted by 
another vendor per DEO 
statements in section 
C.3? 

No.  

26 Page 31, C.6.5 Intake 
Centers 

This section describes the 
location and duration of 
services. As the ITN 
specifically considers 
registration to be the 
objective of this scope of 
work, and the outreach 
period is intended to be 
180 days (with a potential 
extension), and DEO has 
expressed its intention 
that services beyond 
registration will be 
conducted by another 
contractor (see Section 
C.3), does DEO intend for 

No. Please refer to the answer to question 
17.  The Department will ensure adequate 
information is provided to all registrants 
and applicants for CDBG-DR assistance. 



the outreach and intake 
vendor to turn over the 
center locations to the 
subsequent contractor 
who will be undertaking 
application intake and 
processing? If so, how 
does DEO intend to 
handle termination of 
contracts for leases for 
one contractor and turn 
over to the next? If not, 
how does DEO intend to 
minimize public confusion 
about separate locations 
for registration versus 
application or other 
program services? 

27 Pages 15 & 16, B.39 
Attachment H – 

Reference Questionnaire 

Section B-39 of the ITN 
sets forth strict and 
detailed instructions for 
the completion and return 
of the Reference 
Questionnaire attached as 
Attachment H. Failure to 
strictly comply with these 
instructions will result in 
the Respondent receiving 
a score of zero (0) for the 
Past Performance Section 
of the evaluation criteria. 
This requirement and the 
severe consequences for 
failure to strictly adhere to 
it may result in the 
unequal treatment of the 
Respondents for reasons 
beyond their control. 

 
Many agencies/grantees 
have policy that prohibits 
anyone acting on its 
behalf to provide such 
written references. In fact, 
DEO itself us unwilling to 
provide written 
references on behalf of 
former contractors. 

Please refer to the answer to question 4.  
No, references will be required.  



Requiring that the 
references for the listed 
past performances be in 
writing will cause some 
Respondents to choose a 
past performance based 
on the former 
agency/grantee’s policy 
rather than the merits of 
its performance. This may 
be put Respondents on 
unequal footing. 
Depending on a particular 
agency’s policy and the 
experience of the 
Respondents, some will 
not be able to rely in the 
most favorable past 
performance and some 
will. 
 
Also, the timely and 
correct completion of this 
questionnaire by the 
Respondent’s past 
performance references is 
beyond the control of the 
Respondent. Given that 
there are only fourteen 
(14) business days 
between the date of the 
issuance of the ITN (8/16) 
and the due date for the 
responses thereto (8/28), 
there is a real risk of a 
particular reference not 
returning the 
Questionnaire on time or 
returning it improperly 
completed.  The 
Respondents are not even 
allowed to review the 
reference for proper 
completion prior to 
submittal. The result is 
that a Respondent’s score 
could be materially 
affected by matter 



absolutely beyond its 
control. 

 
Considering the 
foregoing, and DEO’s 
ability to directly contact 
the listed references for a 
verbal reference, would 
DEO be willing to strike 
the requirement for a 
written reference from 
the ITN? 

28 Page 13, Tab 4 
Outreach/Communication 

Plan Creative Elements 

How detailed of a media 
plan are you looking for? 

Enough detail should be provided in a 
media plan for DEO to understand and 
evaluate the vender’s ability to deliver a 
comprehensive outreach plan. 

29 Page 26, C.3 Next Phase 
after the Scope of Work 

If a disaster recovery firm 
is a subcontractor in the 
response to this ITN, and 
is contracted with DEO, 
does that preclude the 
firm from pursuing any 
other CDBG-DR 
contracts? 

Yes. 

30 Page 15, B.38 For references required, 
will references to 
subcontractors qualify for 
eligibility requirements? 

No.  

31 Page 13, Tab 3 Project 
Schedule and Timeline 

How detailed of a 
timeline/schedule are you 
looking for? 

Enough detail should be provided in a 
project timeline/schedule for DEO to 
understand and evaluate the vender’s 
ability to deliver a comprehensive 
outreach plan. 

 


